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Particulars of Wembley Park – an auction sale by Mr Christie, in June 1829 

When I was contacted, because of an online article I had written on Wembley Park’s history, 

about the "Particulars and Conditions of sale of a very valuable and most desirable freehold 

estate...called Wembley Park…late the property and residence of John Gray Esq. deceased”, 

which were being catalogued, I replied immediately that I would be very interested to see them. 

Local historians had not previously been aware of this auction sale on 11 June 1829, by no 

less a person than Mr Christie, so the details the document contained would be a valuable 

addition to our knowledge. 

The Particulars were part of a collection of documents at the Royal Institution of Chartered 

Surveyors, which had been inherited from the Auctioneers’ Institute. When we looked at the 

document together at the RICS, it was clear that it could be of wider interest. It was agreed that 

I would prepare a facsimile copy of the Particulars, with an illustrated introductory note to 

provide its historical context. 

The facsimile copy is on pages 9 to 11, but first the introduction, under the following headings 

(which you can come back to later, if you wish to read the Particulars before these details): 

1. The history of Wembley Park, up to John Gray’s death in 1828. 

2. Mr Christie’s auction of Wembley Park in June 1829, and subsequent attempted sales. 

3. The Wembley Park mansion and estate from 1829 onwards. 

4. How we still have the 1829 Particulars document, nearly 200 years later. 

1. The history of Wembley Park, up to John Gray’s death in 1828. 

The Page family had been farmers and landowners in the Wembley area of Harrow Parish, in 

Middlesex, since at least the sixteenth century. In 1745, the widowed Richard Page of Harrow 

married Susanna, a grand-daughter of John Page of Wembley. Through her he became owner 

of a recently-built slate-roofed brick house called “Wellers”, at Wembley Green. 

  
Extract from John Rocque's 1744 map of London and Environs, with “Wellers” added. (Brent Archives) 
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After Richard Page of Harrow’s death in 1771, his eldest son, another Richard, moved into 

“Wellers”, in preference to his late father’s home at Sudbury Grove. This Richard Page was 

lucky enough to inherit a fortune in 1792, from the will of Mary Herne of Harrow (the unmarried 

sister of his father’s first wife). He’d already planned to improve the estate around his home, 

but he was now able to employ the landscape gardener, Humphry Repton, to design it. 

 
Extract from a letter Humphry Repton wrote on 6 May 1793. (From a copy at Brent Archives) 

Repton described Richard Page’s estate as ‘a most beautiful spot near Harrow’. But he 

improved it by closing off the lane which ran past “Wellers”, introducing a new curved drive with 

a lodge at its entrance and fencing off a large area of fields, as his “canvas”. He removed a 

large number of individual trees, which cluttered the view from the house, planted new groups 

of trees, including a line of oaks around the skyline of Barn Hill, and recommended that a herd 

of dairy cattle should be introduced there, to provide interest in the landscape. 

One of Repton’s ideas, which Page did not accept, was to remodel his house as a “Gothic” 

style mansion. Despite this, Humphry Repton gave something else to the estate. In a book he 

published in 1794, “Sketches and Hints on Landscape Gardening”, he wrote: 

‘There is at present no word by which we express that sort of territory adjacent to a 

country mansion, which being too large for a garden, too wild for pleasure ground, and 

too neat for a farm, is yet often denied the name of a park, because it is not fed by deer. 

I generally waive this distinction, and call the wood and lawns, near every house, a park, 

whether fed by deer, by sheep, or heavy cattle.’ 

The estate became Wembley Park, and its owner known as Richard Page of Wembley Park. 

Richard Page never married, and after he died in 1803 the estate passed to his younger 

brother, Francis. As he and his other brothers already had a choice of homes, including 

Sudbury Grove and “Flambards” on Harrow Hill (inherited from Mary Herne), Francis decided 

to sell Wembley Park. In 1804, the copyhold of the park and mansion was sold to John Gray, 

although the Page family retained the tenanted Uxendon and Wembley Farms. 

John Gray was a wealthy brandy merchant, and a Freeman of the City of London. He already 

owned a mansion at Winchmore Hill, which had been built for him in 1787. But it was clear that 

he wanted to make Wembley Park his home when he had his ownership of the property 

converted to freehold in 1810, through a deed of feofment from Lord Northwick, Harrow’s Lord 

of the Manor. 
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Between 1811 and 1814, John Gray spent around £14,000 (equivalent to about £1.3 million 

today) on a major rebuilding of, and additions to, his Wembley Park mansion. He put down 

further roots in Harrow Parish by becoming a Governor of Harrow School in 1809. Those ties 

were made stronger when his eldest daughter, Sarah Maria, married the Rev. George Butler 

DD, Head Master of Harrow School, in March 1818.  

It was Dr Butler who, six years later, conducted the marriage service of John Gray’s only son, 

John Edward Gray, who’d been educated at Harrow School before going to Oriel College, 

Oxford. On 22 October 1828, “Squire” John Gray died at Wembley Park, aged 81. 

2. Mr Christie’s auction of Wembley Park in June 1829, and subsequent attempted sales. 

Only four months after John Gray’s death, Mr Christie (James Christie the Younger, who in 

1803 had inherited the auction business set up by his father in 1766) was advertising that  

he had been instructed by John Gray’s executors to sell the Wembley Park estate. His notice 

in the “Public Sales” column of the “New Times” on 26 February 1829 said that the sale was 

likely to take place in early May, but when the further details he promised then were published, 

the date fixed was 11 June 1829. 

 
Notice of the Wembley Park auction in the “New Times”, 28 May 1829. (British Newspaper Library online) 

The ‘printed particulars’, as seen from the facsimile copy of them, will leave the modern reader 

feeling that the description of the Wembley Park mansion as ‘a very elegant and comfortable 

family dwelling’ is something of an understatement! The document itself was printed on both 

sides of a large sheet of paper. From its dimensions, around 19 inches x 15¼ inches (470mm 

x 385mm), this was likely to be a sheet of Post, one of many Imperial paper sizes at that time.  

The two main pages of the Particulars, pages 2 and 3, were printed on one side. When the 

document was folded, these would be on the inside, and easily read together. On the outside 

were printed page 1, the main details of the auction, and a short version of these to provide a 

cover, when the sheet of paper was folded, then folded again. This produced a pocket-sized 

document, roughly 9¼ inches x 3¾ inches (230mm x 97mm). 
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One half of the printed particulars document with the outside folds showing. (Photo by Fiona Fogden, RICS) 

Although the number of people able to afford such ‘a very valuable and desirable Freehold 

Estate’ would have been small, the auction must have attracted some attention. Yet the 

property was not sold. The most likely reason for that would be that the vendor had set too high 

a reserve price. This copy of the Particulars has several ticks and annotations on it, in pen, and 

the figures noted on the third page, beside the Conditions of Sale, suggest that the original 

holder of the document actually attended the auction, and noted down the bids. 

 
The manuscript figures at the right-hand side of page 3 of the Particulars. 

If that interpretation of the manuscript figures on the document is correct, then the bidding at 

the auction opened at £20,000, then went up in stages to £27,000, then more slowly to a final 

figure of £27,600. That figure in 1829 would be equivalent to around £3.5 million today.  

It was hoped to check what had happened at the auction from Christie’s records. Unfortunately, 

although their archive does have a daybook covering auctions at their saleroom from 

1828/1829, they do not have one for estate sales. Some of their early records were destroyed 

when their premises suffered a direct hit by an incendiary bomb during the Blitz in 1941. 

The failure to sell the Wembley Park estate at Mr Christie’s auction in June 1829 was not the 

end of the matter. There were several advertisements in the “Morning Herald”, in June and July 

1830, offering the Wembley Park mansion and estate for sale by private contract. Similar 

advertisements appeared in the “London Courier and Evening Gazette”, in June and July 1831, 

but John Gray’s executors were still unable to sell the mansion and its ‘320 acres of excellent 

meadow land.’ 
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1834 saw the only attempt to auction the Wembley Park estate that local historians were 

previously aware of. The “Morning Herald” of 29 April 1834 advertised that ‘Mr Shuttleworth, 

28 Poultry, is instructed by the Executors of the late John Gray Esq. to announce for SALE by 

AUCTION ….’ The description of the estate was very similar to that provided by Mr Christie in 

1829, but this time the auction was to be in lots. The auction was again to be held ‘at the Mart’, 

on Friday June 20 at 12noon. 

 
Main section of the 1834 Wembley Park Estate plan, from Mr Shuttleworth’s auction. (Brent Archives) 

Brent Archives does have a copy of the plan of the estate, prepared for Mr Shuttleworth’s 

auction sale. Lot 1 on the plan is the largest area, including the Wembley Park mansion and 

its farm buildings, hidden from the mansion behind a screen of trees, and grounds going down 

the hillside to the meandering Wealdstone Brook (a tributary of the nearby River Brent). The 

other six lots are mainly fields, with small areas of woodland and some osier beds (which would 

have produced thin willow stems for basket weaving) beside the stream. 

As with Mr Christie’s auction, five years earlier, the Wembley Park estate remained unsold. All 

of the lots remained the property of the Page family. 

3. The Wembley Park mansion and estate from 1829 onwards. 

It is unclear why John Gray’s executors put the entire Wembley Park estate up for sale so soon 

after his death in October 1828. His wife, Sarah Maria (née Lewis), who was nearly 30 years 

his junior, was still alive, and living at Wembley Park with at least one of their daughters. He 

had a son, by then the Rev. John Edward Gray, vicar of Gayton, Northamptonshire, in line to 

inherit his estate.  
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It seems possible that John Gray’s expenditure on Wembley Park had left him with a list of 

creditors who needed to be paid. There appears to have been a High Court case, Gray v. Gray, 

in the Chancery Division, which was not settled until 1841. Notice of the Court’s decree was 

published in the “Morning Herald” on 15 July 1841, inviting creditors of ‘John Gray, late of 

Wembley Park, dec’d 22nd day of October 1828’, to apply for payment! Unfortunately, I don’t 

have any more details. 

It is known that John Edward Gray, with his wife and children, moved to Wembley Park. Sadly, 

four days after giving birth to their ninth child, his wife, Susanna Eliza, died at Wembley Park 

in August 1839. His youngest sister, Rachel Charlotte Gray, married the Rev. W. Oxenham of 

Harrow from Wembley Park in April 1840.  

Sarah Maria Gray also continued to live at Wembley Park, but this may have been in the house 

described in the Particulars as: ‘on the border of the Estate is a compact brick-built dwelling, 

on the Wembley road-side, and inclosed by palings from the road.’ Its official name was 

Wembley Cottage, but there are references (in correspondence of the Read family, tenants of 

the nearby Elmtree Farm throughout the 19th century) to it being known as the Dower House, 

which would fit with it being the home of John Gray’s widow until her death in 1854. 

 
The Wembley Park estate, as shown on the 1865 Ordnance Survey map. (From a copy at Brent Archives) 

It seems from the 1865 Ordnance Survey map, where the boundaries of the Wembley Park 

estate can be seen from their lines of trees, that not much had changed since the 1834 

Shuttleworth auction plan. John Edward Gray does not appear to have engaged much in the 

affairs of Wembley, instead living a quiet life (as far as we know), in his mansion and its 

peaceful park. That peace was shattered when he had to sell 47 acres of land across the north 

of Wembley Park to the Metropolitan Railway Company in 1880, so that they could extend their 

line out of Baker Street as far as Harrow-on-the-Hill. It was at around this time that a photograph 

was taken of the Wembley Park mansion. 
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The Wembley Park mansion, with ornamental grounds behind, c.1880. (Brent Archives – WHS Collection) 

The mansion was known locally as “The White House”, from the light-coloured stucco walls 

seen in this picture. Although taken around 50 years later, the photograph confirms the 

description of ‘the Principal Range of Apartments’ given in Mr Christie’s Particulars. Nearest 

the camera on the ground floor is the single-storey Saloon, linked to the bow-fronted Drawing 

Room, and beyond that the Dining Room, also with a bow window. Above on the first floor are 

‘two elegant bow-windowed bed-chambers’. All of ‘this elegant range of apartments looks 

towards the open scenery of the Park.’ 

The Rev. John Edward Gray died in 1887. As he still had a number of adult children living, his 

executors did need to ensure that the Wembley Park estate was finally sold. It was bought, in 

1889, by the Metropolitan Railway’s Chairman, Sir Edward Watkin, for £32,929 18s 7d 

(equivalent to around £5million today).  

Watkin leased 124 acres at the east side of the estate to his Wembley Tower company, which 

opened the Wembley Park pleasure grounds there in May 1894. All of the land acquired from 

Gray’s executors was in the hands of the Metropolitan Railway’s Wembley Park Estate 

Company by 1906. They had already laid out roads to the west of the pleasure grounds in the 

1890s, ready to open up the land for housing development. One of the roads, Wembley Park 

Drive, now led from the original Lodge to Wembley Park Station, rather than to the mansion. 

 
Wembley Park Lodge, in the “cottage orné” style, c. 1900. (Brent Archives – Wembley History Soc. Colln.) 

The Lodge still exists (though currently an “at risk” Grade II listed building, awaiting restoration), 

but the Wembley Park mansion was demolished in 1908, to make way for a housing estate 

centred on Manor Drive. Its last occupants were a group of Catholic nuns from France, who 

arrived as refugees in 1905, when they were expelled from their convent under a new French 

law separating Church and State. 



8 

 

4. How we still have the 1829 Particulars document, nearly 200 years later. 

The Particulars are just a piece of printed paper, about an auction on one day in 1829, which 

could easily have been thrown away after the event. We don’t know who kept this document, 

or why, although we are very lucky that it was kept. We do know that by 1903, it was in the 

hands of Mr J.R. Watson of Esher, and that on 13 June 1903 he presented it to the Auctioneers’ 

Institute. This is recorded on the envelope in which the document was found. 

 
The envelope containing the particulars, from a box of documents being catalogued. (Courtesy of RICS) 

Thanks to a local historian, we now know that John Rowland Watson was born in Kingston-

upon-Thames in April 1864, and later lived with his wife and children at Weston Green, near 

Esher. His occupation in the 1911 census is listed as ‘auctioneer, house and estate agent.’ 

A report in the “Western Times” records that he was accepted as an associate member of the 

Auctioneers’ Institute at their meeting in the Exeter Guildhall on 11 September 1903. His 

proposer was John Garrod, F.A.I., of Esher, a former house painter and builder who’d set up 

business as a house agent in 1886. J.R. Watson was a junior partner in the firm by 1905, and 

possibly the sole proprietor by 1927, when the advert below was published. He died in 1935. 

 
An advert for Garrod & Watson, auctioneers and estate agents, in 1927. (From the Grace’s Guide website) 

It is thanks to people who save interesting ephemera, and who donate such items to collections 

where they will be preserved and catalogued, that we have this wonderful piece of history. 

 

Philip Grant, Wembley History Society, November 2022. 

With thanks to: 

Fiona Fogden – Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. 

Angus Gull – L & J Gull Fine Arts Ltd. 

Janet Heskins – Esher District Local History Society. 

Lynda McLeod – Christie’s Archives, London. 

Brent Museum & Archives, 
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The next three pages are scanned copies of the Particulars document (Courtesy of RICS) 
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